
 

 
 

 

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA 
Prif Weithredwr, 
Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP 

 
 

 
 

FRIDAY, 28 AUGUST 2015 
 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS 

MEETING FOR RESOURCES 

 

 

 

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE 

BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR RESOURCES WHICH WILL 

BE HELD IN THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE ROOM,  COUNTY 

HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 2.00 PM, ON MONDAY, 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2015 

FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE 

ATTACHED AGENDA 

 

 

 

 

Mark James 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 PLEASE RECYCLE 
Democratic Officer: Martin S Davies 

Telephone (direct line): 01267 224027 

Fax: (01267) 224911 

E-Mail: MSDavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

Ref: AD016-001 

 

Document Pack



 

 

 
 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS.   

2. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD OF 
THE MEETING HELD ON 23RD JULY, 2015.  

1 - 4 

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORDS 
OF THE JOINT MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
MEMBERS FOR HOUSING AND RESOURCES HELD ON THE 
29TH JUNE, 2015 AND THE 23RD JULY, 2015.  

5 - 8 

4. FOLLOWING CONSIDERATION OF ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES 
OF THE CASE AND FOLLOWING THE APPLICATION OF THE 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER 
MAY CONSIDER THAT THE FOLLOWING ITEM IS NOT FOR 
PUBLICATION AS IT CONTAINS EXEMPT INFORMATION AS 
DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 14 OF PART 4 OF SCHEDULE 12A TO 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) (WALES) ORDER 2007.  

 

5. FORMER TENANT DEBT WRITE-OFF.  9 - 18 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS 

MEETING FOR RESOURCES  

23RD JULY 2015 

cstypist/democraticMLG/execboardmember/Resources/150723 

DSU Committee Room,  County Hall, Carmarthen 

1.00 p.m. – 2.00 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO 

 Councillor D.M. Jenkins Resources  

The following officers were also in attendance:- 

Mr J. Gravelle Revenue Services Manager 

Mr K. Thomas Democratic Services Officer 

 1.  DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 

No declarations of personal interest were made. 

Having considered the reports on the under-mentioned items the Executive Board Member 
made the following decisions:- 

Item            
No. 

Subject/Decision 

2. DECISION RECORDS – EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES 
–  28TH APRIL AND 7TH MAY 2015 

RESOLVED that the Decision Records of the meeting of the Executive 
Board Member for Resources held on the 28th April and 7th May 2015 be 
received. 

3. 

 

REPORTS NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

RESOLVED pursuant to The Local Government Act, 1972 as amended by 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 
2007 that the following items were not for publication as the reports 
contained exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS 

MEETING FOR RESOURCES  

23RD JULY 2015 

cstypist/democraticMLG/execboardmember/Resources/150723 

4. NON-DOMESTIC RATES – DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED 
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 3 above not to publicise the 
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 
12A to the Act). 

The public interest test in this matter related to the fact that the report 
contained information regarding the individual ratepayers’ recent 
financial history and/or personal information.  Although public disclosure 
of the report would promote accountability for public finances, it would 
release confidential financial information.  On balance, therefore, the 
public interest in disclosure at this time was outweighed by the public 
interest in maintaining confidentiality. 

The Executive Board Member considered an application for Hardship Relief 
under the provisions of Section 49 of Local Government  

Item            
No. 

Subject/Decision 

 Finance Act 1988 as amended. 

RESOLVED that the request for a waiver of rates on the grounds of 
hardship in respect of Rate Reference No. 80020258 be not granted. 

5. COUNCIL TAX – DISCRETIONARY REDUCTIONS 

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED 
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 3 above not to publicise the 
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 
12A to the Act). 

The public interest test in this matter related to the fact that the report 
contained information that identified individuals that are liable to pay 
Council Tax.  

Although public disclosure of the report would promote accountability for 
public finances, it would release confidential information that is not in the 
public domain and which would not normally be disclosed to third 
parties.  On balance, therefore, the public interest in disclosure at this 
time was outweighed by the public interest in maintaining confidentiality. 

The Executive Board Member considered applications which had been 
Page 2



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS 

MEETING FOR RESOURCES  

23RD JULY 2015 

cstypist/democraticMLG/execboardmember/Resources/150723 

received for discretionary reduction of Council Tax. It was noted that 
regulations had been introduced with effect from April 2004 giving Local 
Authorities discretionary powers to grant locally determined Council Tax 
discounts or reductions, over and above existing statutory reductions. 

RESOLVED:- 

 5.1 That due to the exceptional circumstances detailed within the 
report, the Council Tax for the period 8th January to 3rd April 
2015 in respect of Reference 60204715 be waived. 

 5.2 That, consideration of application nos. 60186927 and 60158589 be 
deferred in order for further information to be obtained. 

 5.3 That the applications received for a discretionary reduction in 
Council Tax in respect of reference numbers 60236879, 50003613 
and 60286174 be refused. 

 

Page 3



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS 

MEETING FOR RESOURCES  

23RD JULY 2015 

cstypist/democraticMLG/execboardmember/Resources/150723 

 

Item            
No. 

Subject/Decision 

 5.4 That due to the circumstances detailed within the report, the 
Council Tax in respect of application no 60239886 be waived in 
respect of the 2014/15 financial year and for the first six months of 
the 2015/15 financial year. 

6. IRRECOVERABLE ACCOUNTS 

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED 
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 3 above not to publicise the 
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 
12A to the Act). 

The public interest test in this matter related to the fact that the report 
contained information about individuals’ indebtedness and/or personal 
information. Although public disclosure of the report would promote 
accountability for public finances, it would release confidential financial 
information. On balance therefore, the public interest in disclosure at this 
time was outweighed by the public interest in maintaining confidentiality. 

The Executive Board Member considered a report detailing Council Tax 
Accounts and Housing Benefit Overpayments which had been identified as 
being irrecoverable.  Recovery procedures, where appropriate, had been 
exhausted and there was no likelihood of payment being secured. It was 
therefore considered appropriate to write off those accounts. 

RESOLVED that the accounts detailed within the report be written off as 
irrecoverable 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES 

_______________________ 

DATE 

Page 4



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE JOINT EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER’S 

DECISIONS MEETING FOR RESOURCES AND HOUSING 

29
TH

 JUNE 2015  

 

Democratic Services Committee Room, County Hall, Carmarthen  

2.30 p.m. – 3.00 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO 

 Councillor L.D. Evans Housing; 

 Councillor D. M. Jenkins Resources; 

The following officers were also in attendance:- 

Mr. J. Fearn Head of Corporate Property; 

Mr. J. Morgan Housing Services Manager; 

Mr. M.S. Davies Democratic Services Officer. 

1.  DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest. 

Having considered the reports on the under-mentioned items the Executive Board 
Member, having taken into account the views of Local Members and interested parties, if 
appropriate, made the following decisions:- 

Item         
No. 

Subject/Decision 

2. BRYNMEFYS, LLANELLI  OPTIONS FOR DELIVERING AFFORDABLE 
HOMES 

The Executive Board Members for Resources and Housing considered a report 
detailing 5 options, together with their advantages / disadvantages, for the 
delivery of affordable housing at Brynmefys, Llanelli, based on an assumption of 
70 homes being delivered on the site by a developer with 20% [i.e.14] affordable 
homes. Appended to the report was a copy of the Planning Brief for Brynmefys. 

RESOLVED that the Brynmefis site be marketed on the basis of options 1,4 
and 5 for the delivery of affordable housing and that a further report be 
submitted in due course. 

 

 

 

_______________ ______________  

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR HOUSING 

 

_______________________    

DATE 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE JOINT EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER’S 

DECISIONS MEETING FOR RESOURCES AND HOUSING 

23RD JULY 2015  

 

Democratic Services Committee Room, County Hall, Carmarthen  

2.00 p.m. – 2.30 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO 

 Councillor L.D. Evans Housing; 

 Councillor D. M. Jenkins Resources; 

The following officers were also in attendance:- 

Mr. L. James Housing Services Manager 

Mr. J. Gravelle Revenue Services Manager 

Mr. K. Thomas Democratic Services Officer. 

1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest. 

Having considered the reports on the under-mentioned items the Executive Board 
Member, having taken into account the views of Local Members and interested parties, if 
appropriate, made the following decisions:- 

Item         
No. 

Subject/Decision 

2 DECISION RECORD 29TH JUNE 2015 

RESOLVED that the decision record of the meeting held on the 29th 
June 2015 be signed as a correct record. 

3 REPORTS NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

RESOLVED pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972 as amended 
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) 
Order 2007 that the following item was not for publication as the report 
contained exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 14 and 16 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act 

4. LEASEHOLD CHARGES, HEOL WALLASEY, AMMANFORD 

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED 
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 3 above not to publicise the 
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 
12A to the Act) and information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
(Paragraph 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act). 
The public interest test in this matter related to the fact the report 
contained privileged legal information and details of leaseholders at Heol 
Wallasey. As such, any disclosure would prejudice the rights and 
freedoms of the relevant data subjects and any legal action that the Page 7



 

 

 

DECISION RECORD OF THE JOINT EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER’S 

DECISIONS MEETING FOR RESOURCES AND HOUSING 

23RD JULY 2015  

 

Authority might take or have to defend itself. Accordingly, the public 
interest in disclosure was outweighed by the public interest in 
maintaining confidentiality. 
 
The Executive Board Members for Resources and Housing considered a report 
detailing 4 options in relation to the level of charges to be applied to 
Leaseholders of properties at Heol Wallasey in respect of works undertaken to 
those properties by the Authority. 

RESOLVED that the level of charges to be applied to the Leaseholders at 
Heol Wallasey be the original amount as set out in the Notice of 
Estimates. 

 

 

 

 

_______________ ______________  

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR HOUSING 

 

_______________________    

DATE 

Page 8



Agenda Item 5

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Document is Restricted



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 15

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

 of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972 as am

ended
by the Local G

overnm
ent (A

ccess to Inform
ation)  (V

ariation) (W
ales) O

rder 2007.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 18

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23RD JULY, 2015.
	3 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORDS OF THE JOINT MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS FOR HOUSING AND RESOURCES HELD ON THE 29TH JUNE, 2015 AND THE 23RD JULY, 2015.
	150723 jt resources

	5 FORMER TENANT DEBT WRITE-OFF.
	Report


